
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, May 27, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Stack.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 7

Public Hearing - May 13, 2014
Regular Meeting - May 13, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10943 (OCP14-0009) - Miscellaneous Housekeeping Amendments,
City of Kelowna

8 - 16

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10943 second and third readings, and
adoption consideration, in order to amend the Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10959 (Z14-0005) - 669 McClure Road, Heritage Log Structures Inc. 17 - 17

To give Bylaw No. 10959 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU2 - Medium
Lot Housing zone.

4.3 WITHDRAWN BY THE APPLICANT - Bylaw No. 10960 (OCP13-0003) - 1800 Crosby
Road, DRS Ventures Ltd.

18 - 19

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10960 second and third readings in order to change the
Future Land Use Designation of a portion of the subject property from the
Single/Two Unit Residential, Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) and Major
Park/Open Space designations to the Single/Two Unit Residential, Multiple
Unit Residential (Low Density) and Major Park/Open Space designations.



4.4 WITHDRAWN BY THE APPLICANT - Bylaw No. 10961 (Z13-0004) - 1800 Crosby
Road, DRS Ventures Ltd.

20 - 21

To give Bylaw No. 10961 second and third readings in order to rezone a
portion of the subject property from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to the P3 -
Parks and Open Space and RU2 - Medium Lot Housing zones.

4.5 Bylaw No. 10956 (OCP14-0001) - Various Addresses Richter Street, City of
Kelowna & Miles Vucicevic

22 - 23

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10956 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designations of the subject properties from the COMM -
Commercial designation to the EDINST - Educational/Institutional designation.

4.6 Bylaw No. 10957 (Z14-0001) - Various Addresses on Clement Avenue, St. Paul
Street and Richter Street, City of Kelowna & Miles Vucicevic

24 - 24

To give Bylaw No. 10957 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject properties from the I2 - General Industrial and I4 - Central Industrial
zones to the P1 - Major Institutional zone.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 Liquor License Application No. LL14-0003 - 1978 Kirschner Road - Argo
Investment Corporation Inc.

25 - 38

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
This application seeks Council support for an expansion of the existing Liquor
Primary license with a revised capacity of 355 persons and hours of service
from 7:00 p.m. to 2:00 a.m. daily.

7. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

7.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0055 - 423 Christleton
Avenue -  Islam Mohamed & Janet Evans

39 - 47

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to reduce the required front
yard setback for an accessory building from 12 metres to 6 metres.

7.2 Development Variance Permit Application No.  DVP14-0051 - Richter Street - 48 - 67



Simple Pursuits Inc.

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to vary the maximum
number of permitted commercial parking spaces from 130 spaces permitted to
193 spaces proposed.

7.3 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0057 - 1829 Chandler
Avenue - Chandler Management Group Ltd.

68 - 83

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to allow a caretaker suite
on the first floor for a supportive housing use.

7.4 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0049 - 935 Academy Way
- U One Mission Group Homes Ltd.

84 - 103

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of this Development Variance Permit is to vary the minimum
number of required parking spaces to be provided on site and to vary the
maximum permitted building height in order to facilitate minor revisions to the
approved development of a multiple unit residential building on the subject site.

7.5 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0067 - 609 Burne Avenue
- Craig Abernathy

104 - 119

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of this Development Variance Permit is to vary the permitted
carriage house height from 4.5 metres to 5.5 metres and to vary site coverage
from 14% to 15.4%.

7.6 Temporary Use Permit Application No. TUP14-0001 - 459 Groves Avenue and
437 & 442 Newsom Avenue - Meiklejohn Architects Ltd.

120 - 132

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required temporary use permit to come forward.
To consider a Temporary Use Permit to extend the use of the subject
properites as a construction staging and storage location for the adjacent
mixed use SOPA Square project.

8. Reminders



9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 6, 2014. 

RIM No. 0930-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: LL14-0003 Owner: 

Argo Investment 
Corporation, Inc. No. 304067 

Federico Enterprises Ltd., 

Inc. No. 225514 

Address: 1978 Kirschner Road Applicant: 
0885172 B.C. LTD. 

(dba O.K. Corral) 

Subject: Liquor License – Structural Change  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed-Use (Residential/Commercial) (MXR) 

Existing Zone: 
C10lp/rls – Service Commercial (Liquor Primary/ 
Retail Liquor Store) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed considerations 
for the application from OK Corral Cabaret 1978 Kirschner Road, Kelowna BC, (legally described 
as Lot A, DL 129, O.D.Y.D., Plan 23146 for an expansion of the existing Liquor Primary license 
with a revised capacity of 355 persons and hours of service from 7:00pm-2:00am daily are as 
follows: 
 
a) The potential for noise if the application is approved: 
The expansion is limited to indoor areas.  It is anticipated that only incremental increases in 
noise from the existing operation are anticipated. 
 
b) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 
The potential for negative impacts is considered to be minimal. 
  
c) View of residents.  
The Council’s comments on the views of residents (if applicable) are as contained within the 
minutes of the meeting at which the application was considered by Council.  The methods used 
to gather views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor Licensing Policy & 
Procedures.” 
 
d) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 

25



LL14-0003 – Page 2 

 
 

The total person capacity proposed for liquor primary service is 355 seats with operating hours   
of 7:00pm to 2:00 am 7 days a week. 
 
 
e) Traffic and parking: 
There is no increase in traffic or parking associated with this application, as no additional space 
or seating is being added as part of the application. Therefore the parking and traffic situation 
should remain unchanged.   
 
f) The proximity of the establishment to other social or recreational facilities and public 
buildings: 
Surrounding social or recreational facilities would not conflict with the proposed establishment. 
 
g) Recommendation: 
Council recommends that the application for a structural change to increase the capacity of the 
existing Liquor Primary establishment be approved. 
 

2.0 Purpose 

This application seeks Council’s support for an increase in capacity to the existing Liquor Primary 
from an existing licensed capacity of 291 persons to a proposed capacity of up to 355 persons. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

This application to increase occupant load represents a minor change to the existing 
establishment.  The applicant has recently completed renovations to increase the washroom 
capacity of the establishment, as well as engaged the services of a building code consultant to 
review the fire exit capacity of the existing cabaret to confirm the occupant load of the 
associated building areas.  With this information and a site visit by building and permitting staff, 
a new occupancy load for the establishment was generated.  No change to the business focus, 
clientele or management are expected through the change.   

Based on the above, the Urban Planning Department recommends that the application be 
supported. 

4.0 Summary 

4.1 Background 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval.  Procedurally, changes to the floor plans that increase total 
occupancy of licensed establishments require Local Government comment on the application, 
prior to the LCLB making a final decision. 

4.2 Proposal 

The subject property has operated as a Liquor Primary establishment since the mid 1980’s.  The 
property also includes a liquor store component.  The current establishment has a licensed 
capacity of 291 persons.  The revised occupant load generated by the City’s Building and 
Permitting branch, supports a maximum occupancy load of 355 persons, based on the renovated 
washroom capacity and site visit observations.  There have been no recent renovations that have 
increased the size of the building, so there has been no increase in the amount of off-street 
parking required. 

26



LL14-0003 – Page 3 

 
 

 
As a result of this review, the operators of the establishment have received a revised occupant 
load from the City of Kelowna for a total of 355 persons.  That occupant load was based on 
washroom capacity for the facility, which was recently increased, and a site visit by City staff. 
 
Proposed Structural Change Summary: 

Person Capacity: 

Licensed Area Capacity 

Total Existing Licensed Capacity 291 
  

Proposed Total Licensed Capacity  355 

No changes to the existing licensed hours of sale (until 2:00am daily) are being considered. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located within the Capri-Landmark Urban Centre.  The nearest Liquor 
Primary establishment would be Chances Gaming Entertainment, which is approximately 350m 
away, to the south-west. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C10 – Service Commercial Auto body shop, restaurant 

East C10 – Service Commercial & LUC76-1052 Service Commercial uses 

South C10 – Service Commercial Service Commercial uses 

West C10 – Service Commercial Service Commercial uses 

 

Subject Property Map:   1978 Kirschner Road 
 

 

Subject Property 

Chances Gaming 

Baxter’s Bar & Grille 

27



LL14-0003 – Page 4 

 
 

 

 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

 

5.1 Council Policy #359 – Liquor Licensing Policy and Procedures 

The following sections of Policy #359 are applicable to this application: 

 Large establishments (with person capacity greater than 249 persons): 
o Should only be located within an Urban Centre. 

(complies) 
o  Should be located a minimum of 250m from another Large establishment. 

(complies) 
o  Should be located a minimum of 100m from a Medium establishment. 

(complies) 
o  Should not be located beside a Small establishment. 

(complies) 

5.2 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done 
by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 
metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) 
through development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 
5.3) in particular and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land 
Use Map 4.1. 

Entertainment Venues.2 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector 
provision of facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment 
opportunities throughout the city. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No Comment 

6.2 Bylaw Services 

 No Response 

6.3 Fire Department 

 No Concerns 

6.4 Interior Health Authority 

                                                
1
 Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter) 

2
 Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter 5, page 5.21) 

28



LL14-0003 – Page 5 

 
 

 Interior Health does not have any comments on the attached referral based on no changes 
 to bars/foodservice and only an increase in occupancy load with new washrooms. 

6.5 R.C.M.P. 

 The RCMP have no comments regarding the requested increase in permitted seating 
 capacity from 291 to 355 occupants. 

 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: March 23, 2014  
 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager 
     Urban Planning 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, Divisional Director  
Community Planning and Real Estate  

 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Applicant letter 
Occupant Load floor plan 
LCLB Application 
 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/17/2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DVP14-0055 Owner: 
Islam Mohamed & Janet 
Evans 

Address: 423 Christleton Ave Applicant: Peter J. Chataway 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0055 for Lot B, 
District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan KAP55329, located at 423 Christleton Ave, Kelowna, BC.  

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

To vary Section 6.5.8(a) (Accessory Development) from a twelve (12) metre front yard 
setback for an accessory building to a six (6) metre front yard setback for a detached 
garage or carport that meets the principal building’s side yard setback requirements (as 
per schedule ‘A’). 

AND THAT the “FortisBC Energy Inc. – Gas” requirements be met prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to reduce the required front yard setback for 
an accessory building from 12 metres to 6 metres.  

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff are supportive of the proposed variance. If the carport was attached to the principal 
dwelling then it would be permitted without the need for a variance. From a design perspective, 
any garage or carport in the front yard attached or otherwise is highly undesirable. However, in 
this case there is no rear access via a lane and the houses are built in close proximity to the side 
lot preventing a driveway to the rear of the property. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the proposed Development Variance 

39



 
 

 

Permit application to neighbouring properties within 50 m of the subject site, and to date, City 
staff has not been contacted with any objections or concerns with the proposed variance.  

4.0 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing  

RU2 - Medium Lot Housing  

RU1c – Large Lot Housing with Carriage 
House 

Residential 

East 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing  

RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing  
Residential 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 
 

Subject Property Map: 423 Christleton Ave 

 

 

40



 
 

 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Urban Design Development Permit Areas Guidelines (Chapter 14) 
 

 Encourage building and landscape designs that promote privacy, safety, and 
accessibility;  

 Respect the privacy of adjacent properties through appropriate placement of 
windows, location of decks, and any other feature that may infringe upon the privacy 
of a neighbouring residence; 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Continuous footings required around full perimeter. Full Plan check for Building Code related 
issues will be done at time of Building Permit applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Does not compromise any municipal services. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 FortisBC Energy Inc - Gas 

Please be advised FortisBC gas division has reviewed the above mentioned referral and the 
homeowner must be aware that our records indicate that the existing gas service line would be 
'underneath' the new carport structure. Gas Safety regulations consider this contravention of gas 
safety codes, the gas service line will need to be 'altered' outside of the carport footprint. Call 1-
888-224-2710 Option 3 to initiate alteration." 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  April 7, 2014  
Date of Public Consultation Received: April 17, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

Approved for Inclusion:   

 

Attachments: 

Application Package (Schedule ‘A’)
 

Doug Gilchrist, Community Planning 
& Real Estate Div. Director 

41



42



43



44



45



 
CITY OF KELOWNA 

 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 
 
 

Development Variance Permit No.:   DVP14—0055  

 
 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

  
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
 
n/a  

 
 
ISSUED TO:       Islam Mohamed & Janet Evans          
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:     423 Christleton Ave 
 
 
 LOT D.L. PLAN SECTION TOWNSHIP DISTRICT 
 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 14  KAP55329     ODYD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
THAT the variance to Section 6.5.8(a) of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted from: 

To vary Section 6.5.8(a) (Accessory Development) from a twelve (12) metre front yard setback for an accessory 
building to a six (6) metre front yard setback for a detached garage or carport that meets the principal 
building’s side yard setback requirements (as per schedule ‘A’). 
 

3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: None Required. 
  
4. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 

46



 - 2 - Permit No. DVP14-0055 
 
 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality. The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Urban Planning  
Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

6. APPROVALS: 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE  __DAY OF ______, 2014. 
 
ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF ___________, 2014 BY THE 
DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director -  Community Planning & Real Estate  

47



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 28, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning &Real Estate (AR) 

Application: DVP14-0051 Owner: 
Simple Pursuits Inc.,         
Inc. No. BC0449611 

Address: 2700-2790 Richter Street Applicant: 
Simple Pursuits Inc.,         
Inc. No. BC0449611 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0051 for Lot 1, 
District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan EPP29295, located at 2700-2790 Richter Street, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 8.1.2 – Off-Street Vehicle Parking – Number of Spaces: Table 8.1 Parking Schedule 
To vary the maximum number of permitted commercial parking spaces from 130 spaces 
permitted to 193 spaces proposed, as per Schedule ‘A’. 

2.0 Purpose 

To increase the maximum number of permitted commercial parking spaces from 130 spaces 
permitted to 193 spaces proposed, in order to facilitate the addition of a third level of parking to 
the parking structure of the approved mixed-use development on the subject site. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Under the City’s zoning requirements, the maximum permitted parking that may be provided in 
conjunction with a development is 125% of the minimum required parking for each proposed use 
class, in order to support the City’s transportation demand management (TDM) objectives. The 
subject Development Variance Permit application seeks to vary the maximum permitted amount 
of onsite commercial parking from 130 spaces (125% of the minimum required) to 193 spaces 
(185% of the minimum required), a variance of 63 spaces or 48%. This is proposed to be achieved 

48



DVP14-0051 – Page 2 

 
 

by revising the originally approved development (currently under construction) to add a third 
level of parking to the project’s internalized parking structure.  

Presently underway is the City’s Parking Strategy, which includes the South Pandosy Town Centre 
area. The results of this work indicate that there is a shortfall of parking in the area, notably 
during peak times when employee parking is also a contributing factor. Through this process, 
area residents and business owners have also vocalized concerns about a perceived inadequate 
supply and/or availability of off-street parking. Albeit private parking, the proposed addition of 
the 63 commercial parking spaces beyond the maximum permitted would ensure that the 
proposed mixed-use development does not further exacerbate the neighbourhood’s parking 
issues, and may help to alleviate overall parking demand in those cases where customers parking 
on the subject site are then making other trips on foot within the surrounding area. Finally, the 
third level addition to the parking structure will not appreciably alter the street view of the 
approved development, since it will be screened by the external development that wraps the 
internalized parking structure almost entirely (except at access points).  

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties within 
50 m of the subject site of the proposed Development Variance Permit application. Two adjacent 
neighbours have submitted letters of support for the provision of additional onsite parking. 
Additionally, the KLO Central Neighbourhood Association has also submitted a letter of support 
for the proposed parking variance (see attached KLONCA letter dated April 25, 2014). 

4.0   Proposal 

4.1 Background 

On April 23, 2013, Council approved Development Permit DP13-0016 and Development Variance 
Permit DVP13-0017 to facilitate the development of a comprehensive mixed-used development 
on the subject site. The approved development is presently under construction, and is comprised 
of a 5-storey commercial building at the west end of the site, four townhouse units fronting onto 
Osprey Avenue and four fronting onto Raymer Avenue, and retail frontage along Richter Street. 
At the centre of the site, is a two-level parking structure, with the lower level accessed from 
Osprey Avenue and the upper level accessed from Raymer Avenue. In total, the originally 
approved development proposed 137 parking spaces (127 commercial and 10 residential) within 
internal parking structure.  

4.2  Project Description 

Subsequent to the original approvals noted above, the applicant has determined that additional 
parking to serve the subject development is desirable to ensure the development’s leasability, 
and that a 3rd level of parking could be added to the project’s internal parking structure with 
minimal impact on the outward appearance of the development (see attached Applicant’s Letter 
of Rationale). To this end, the applicant is seeking a variance to the maximum permitted amount 
of commercial parking from 130 spaces permitted to 193 spaces proposed.  

As originally designed, the parking structure is internalized within the site and wrapped by 
external development, thereby concealing most of the structure from view with the exception of 
the parkade access points. The proposed additional parking level will also be largely screened 
from view by the surrounding development — the upper-level guard wall will protrude above the 
townhouse units along the Osprey Avenue frontage; however, this wall is setback approximately 
7.5 m from the street and should therefore have limited visibility. With the addition of a third 
level of parking, access to the parking structure will be revised such that the lower level will now 
be accessed from Raymer Avenue and the upper levels accessed from Osprey Avenue. 

49



DVP14-0051 – Page 3 

 
 

4.3  Site Context 

The subject site is located in the South Pandosy Town Centre area, between Tutt and Richter 
Streets, and between Osprey Park to the north and Raymer Elementary School to the south. 

Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P3 – Parks & Open Space Osprey Park 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single and Two Unit Residential 

South P2 – Educational & Minor Institutional Raymer Elementary School 
West C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Mixed-Use Development 

 
Subject Property Map: 2700-2790 Richter Street 
 

 
  

Subject 
Property 

50



DVP14-0051 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The proposal compares to the relevant C4 zone parking requirements as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Minimum / Maximum 
Parking Requirements 

Commercial: 
Min. 104 spaces 

Max. 130 spaces (125% of min. required 
spaces) 

Residential: 
Min. 8 spaces 

Max. 10 spaces (125% of min. required 
spaces) 

Commercial: 
193 spaces (185% of min. required 

spaces)  
 

Residential: 
10 spaces (125% of min. required 

spaces) 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 10 spaces 
Class II: 30 spaces 

Class I: 10 spaces 
Class II: 30 spaces 

Loading Space 4 stalls 4 stalls 

 Vary maximum permitted commercial parking from 130 spaces permitted to 193 spaces proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 14 – Comprehensive Development Design Guidelines 

Pedestrian access, provision for cyclists, circulation, vehicles and loading 

 Locate parking areas to the rear of buildings, internal to the building, or below grade 

 Avoid large expanses of parking 

 Ensure vehicular and service access has minimal impact on the streetscape 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to Development Engineering Memorandum, dated March 26, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 FortisBC Energy Inc. - Gas 

No comments received. 

6.5 FortisBC Energy Inc. - Electric 

No comments received. 
  

51



DVP14-0051 – Page 5 

 
 

6.6 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Communications’ interests are unaffected. The applicant should contact Shaw regarding 
future cable services. 

6.7 Telus 

No comments received. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:   March 19, 2014 

Applicant’s Consultation Summary Received: April 11, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     

Abigail Riley, Planner II 
Urban Planning  
 

Reviewed by:          Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:     Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning & 
Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Building Elevations 
Applicant’s Letter of Rationale, dated March 12, 2014 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated March 26, 2014 
Letter from KLOCNA, dated April 25, 2014 
Letters of neighbor support 
Draft Development Variance Permit 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/30/2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DVP14-0057 Owner: 
Chandler Management Group 
Ltd. 

Address: 1829 Chandler Street Applicant: Inn from the Cold - Kelowna 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MXR - Mixed Use Residential / Commerial 

Existing Zone: C3 – Community Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0057 for Lot 36, 
District Lot 137, ODYD, Plan 10011, Except Plan KAP54078 located at 1829 Chandler Street, 
Kelowna, BC.  

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 14.3.6 (a) – Other Regulations 
To vary the regulation that only permits commercial uses on the first floor to allow a 
caretaker suite for supportive housing purposes on the first floor. 

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to allow a caretaker suite on the first floor 
for a supportive housing use.  

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff support the proposed variance. The ‘Inn from the Cold’ business model fits within a few 
different land use definitions; however, the land use that is most congruent is supportive 
housing. Supportive Housing is a principal use within the C-3 zone and is limited to the following 

other zones: RM3, RM4, RM5, RM6, C2, C3, C4, & C7.  In this case, a separated 24 hour caretaker 
suite for the supportive housing use would provide beneficial supervision for this valuable 
community service. The proposed variance does not permit any clients to be located on the first 
floor and is limited to a caretaker suite which should have limited impact on the overall use of 
the building. The required number of parking stalls for the proposed use is 10 and the amount of 
parking provided (including rear carport) is 12 stalls.   

68



 
 

 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the proposed Development Variance 
Permit application to neighbouring properties within 50 m of the subject site, and to date, City 
staff has not been contacted with any objections or concerns with the proposed variance.  

3.1 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 1,300 m2  1021 m2 

Lot Width 18.0 m 38.1 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 23.4 m 

Development Regulations 
Height 15 m or 4 storeys 6.7 metres, 2 storeys 

Front Yard 3.0 m Greater than 3.0m 

Side Yard (south) 2.0 m Greater than 2.0m 

Side Yard (north) 2.0 m Greater than 2.0m 

Rear Yard 0.0 m Greater than 0.0m 

Site coverage  50 % 20.5% 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
10 stalls 12 stalls 

 

4.0 Site Context 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
Highway 33 

RM5 – Medium Density multiple housing 
Residential 

East C-3 Community Commercial Commercial 

South 
RU6 – Large Lot Housing 

P1- Public & Institutional zones 

Residential 

Institutional 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



 
 

 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 1829 Chandler St 
 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Social Sustainability (Chapter 10) 

 Objective 10.3: Support the creation of affordable and safe rental, non-market 
and/or special needs housing. 

 Policy 1 Housing Availability: Support the provision of housing for all members of 
the community, including those in core housing need or requiring special needs 
housing (transitional, age in place, emergency or shelter). 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Building Code Analysis c/w exiting analysis is required at time of building permit 
application for the change of use for this building.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 This development variance permit application to waive the following regulation 
stating that “Apartment housing and major group homes are allowed only above the 
first storey and requires access to grade separate from the commercial uses does 
not compromise any municipal services.  

70



 
 

 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  April 4, 2014  
Date of Public Consultation Received: April 4, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

Approved for Inclusion:   

 

Attachments: 

Application Package (Schedule ‘A’)
 

Doug Gilchrist, Community Planning 
& Real Estate Div. Director 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 25, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning &Real Estate (AR) 

Application: DVP14-0049 Owner: 
U One Mission Group Homes 
Ltd. 

Address: 935 Academy Way Applicant: 
U One Mission Group Homes 
Ltd. 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0049 for Lot B, 
Section 10, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP16167, located at 935 Academy Way, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

Section 8.1.2 – Off-Street Vehicle Parking – Number of Spaces 
To vary the minimum number of required parking spaces from 100 spaces required to 
93 spaces proposed, as per Schedule ‘A’; 
 
Section 13.10.6 (c) – RM4 Zone Development Regulations 
To vary the maximum permitted height from 3 storeys permitted to 3½ storeys proposed, 
as per Schedule ‘A’. 

2.0 Purpose  

To vary the minimum number of required parking spaces to be provided on site and to vary the 
maximum permitted building height in order to facilitate minor revisions to the approved 
development of a multiple unit residential building on the subject site. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Urban Planning staff is supportive of the proposed variance to permit a building height of 
3½ storeys. The variance results from a minor modification to landscape berming at the base of 
the building’s north elevation, but does not alter the overall building height of 13 m approved 
under the original Development Permit DP13-0197 and is consistent with the maximum building 

84



DVP14-0049 – Page 2 

 
 

height of the RM4 zone. The proposed revision to the landscape berming enables an improved 
treatment of the pedestrian environment along the front of the building, with a wider sidewalk 
and row of trees buffering the adjacent parking area.  

Staff is also supportive of the proposed variance to reduce the required onsite parking modestly 
from 100 spaces to 93 spaces, a variance of 7 spaces. The development is targeted principally for 
students and staff of the adjacent UBC Okanagan campus and, given the anticipated overall 
reduced levels of corresponding vehicle ownership, staff feels that a modest variance of 7% can 
be accommodated. Additionally, the development provides twice the amount of required bicycle 
parking, with one secured bicycle space for every unit. Further, the variance enables the 
elimination of a second surface parking area in front of the proposed development, thereby 
reducing paved surface and facilitating the addition of a landscaped common gathering area for 
use by building residents.  

Given the largely undeveloped surrounding context, staff believes that neighbour notification is 
adequately satisfied through the formal public notification process and posting of Development 
Application signage. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In February 2014, Council authorized a Development Permit under DP13-0197 for a proposed 66-
unit residential building on the subject site, along with associated landscaping and site works. At 
3 storeys and 13 m in height, the approved building is designed to respond to the site’s natural 
contour and sloping grades. The approved onsite parking consists of a total of 100 parking spaces 
― 66 spaces are provided in below-grade, under-building parking (with one enclosed parking space 
per unit), and a further 34 spaces are provided in front of the building in two surface parking 
areas.   

4.2 Project Description 

The subject Development Variance Permit application is seeking two variances to the original 
Development Permit approved under DP13-0197 ― one is to vary building height by a ½ storey for 
a total of 3½ storeys, and the other is to reduce required parking by 7 spaces for a total of 
93 spaces.  

In the first instance, the variance is of a technical nature, pertaining to how the number of 
storeys is measured under the Zoning Bylaw. The site slopes down significantly to the north, 
resulting in the base of the building’s north elevation being exposed. Under the original proposal, 
a steeply sloped landscaped berm is provided along the north elevation to screen the building’s 
base and under-building parking area, and the number of storeys is measured from the top of this 
landscaped berm. The applicant would like to revise the application to lower the overall height 
of this landscape berm modestly (by approximately 0.80 m), thereby enabling a wider sidewalk 
area with tree planting along the front of the building. However, this modification has the effect 
of increasing the measurement of the number of storeys from 3 storeys to 3½ storeys. The 
proposed landscape modification does not affect the overall approved building height of 13 m, 
which remains unchanged for the proposal and which complies with the RM4 development 
regulations. 

The second variance proposed is to reduce the total required parking to be provided on site by 
7 spaces, from 100 spaces to 93 spaces, a variance of 7%. Specifically, it is proposed that the 
number of surface parking spaces provided in front of the building be reduced from 34 spaces to 
27 spaces, given the anticipated primarily student occupancy of the proposed development and 

85



DVP14-0049 – Page 3 

 
 

its close proximity to the University campus (± 200 m). The proposed reduction of parking would 
enable the removal of the second surface parking area and the inclusion of a landscaped common 
gathering area for the building’s residents.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north facing slope of the developing University South Area, 
on the east side of Academy Way across from Aberdeen Hall, and south of John Hindle Drive and 
the UBC Okanagan campus.  

Presently, the adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C3 – Community Commercial Mixed Use Development 

East A1 – Agricultural 1 Agricultural / Vacant 

South RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Forested / Vacant 

West P2 – Educational & Minor Institutional Aberdeen Hall / School 

 
Subject Property Map: 935 Academy Way 

 
  

Subject 
Property 

86



DVP14-0049 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The proposal compares to the RM4 zone requirements as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM-4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 900 m2  Approx. 20,156 m2 (2.02 ha) 

Lot Width 30 m Approx. 111 m 

Lot Depth 30 m Approx. 241 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.65 with 0.13 bonus  0.26 

Site Coverage (buildings) 50% 11.4% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways, parking areas) 

60% 20.0% 

Height Lesser of 13 m or 3 storeys 13 m and 3½ storeys  

Front Yard 6 m (if more than 2 storeys) 34.8 m 

Side Yard (north) 4.5 m (if more than 2 storeys) 44.5 m 

Side Yard (south) 4.5 m (if more than 2 storeys) 9.0 m 

Rear Yard 9.0 m (if more than 2 storeys) 69.2 m 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements 100 spaces 93 spaces  

Min. Setback for  Vehicular 
Parking 

3.0 m from any street 
1.5 m from any side property line 

Meets requirements 

Bicycle Parking 
Class 1: 0.5/unit (33 spaces)      
Class 2: 0.1/unit (7 spaces) 

66 Class 1 spaces (in parkade) 
8 Class 2 spaces 

Visitor Parking 10 spaces 10 spaces (at surface) 

Private Open Space 1,438 m2  2,230 m2 

 Indicates a requested variance to increase maximum permitted building height from 3 storeys permitted to 3½ storeys proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce required parking from100 spaces required to 93 spaces proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Policy 5.11.1. Parking Relaxations. Consider parking requirement relaxations, in areas that are 
not part of a cash-in-lieu program, where an approved TDM strategy indicates a lower use of 
vehicles and the City is satisfied that parking relaxations would not create parking spill-over 
problems on adjoining neighbourhood streets. Parking relaxations will not be considered in 
hillside areas (as defined on Map 4.1 - Future Land Use). 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Development Engineering Memorandum, dated March 25, 2014. 

 

87



DVP14-0049 – Page 5 

 
 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District (GEID) 

Refer to attached GEID letter, dated March 13, 2014. 

6.5 FortisBC (Electric) 

No comments received. 

6.6 FortisBC (Gas) 

No comments received. 

6.7 Telus 

No comments received. 

6.8 Shaw Cable 

No concerns. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: March 11, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     

Abigail Riley, Planner II 
Urban Planning  
 

Reviewed by:          Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:     Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning & 
Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Landscape Plan 
Building Elevations 
Building Façade Section 
Building Façade Renderings 
Applicant’s Letter of Rationale 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated March 25, 2014 
GEID Letter, dated March 13, 2014 
Draft Development Variance Permit 

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 5/6/2014 

RIM No. 1940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DVP14-0067 Owner: Craig Abernathy 

Address: 609 Burne Ave Applicant: Craig Abernathy 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DP14-0067, for Lot 1, 
District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan KAP54306 located on 609 Burne Ave, Kelowna, BC. 
 
AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 19.5b.1 – Carriage House Regulations 

To vary the permitted height of a carriage house from 4.5m to 5.5m. 

Section 6.5.7 – Accessory Development 

To vary the maximum site coverage of accessory buildings from 14% to 15.4%. 

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to vary carriage house height and site 
coverage. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The subject property was designated a heritage building until the building was destroyed by fire 
and the heritage designation was removed by Council on April 15th 2014. The subject property is 
located within a character neighbourhood and thus needs a development permit for any new 
construction. 
 
The carriage house height does not meet the 4.5 metre maximum height, however, if the ‘old 
dormer height regulations’ applied then it would comply. Staff are currently in the process of 
making changes to the carriage house height and dormer width regulations. The proposal would 
comply under the proposed regulations. In the mean time, the applicant still needs to apply for a 

104



DVP14-0067 – Page 2 

 
 

variance. In this case, the dormer widths are less than 50% of the width of the roof on which they 
are located and the dormers are facing the lane and the principal dwelling. This minimizes the 
impact on adjacent parcels and is supported by the design guidelines. Additionally due to the 
relatively small parcel size (551 m2) the maximum footprint size of the carriage house that meets 
the 14% site coverage is 77m2. The applicant is proposing to build a carriage house with a 
footprint size of 85 m2 which results in a site coverage of 15.4%. Many of the adjacent carriage 
houses along the lane are a full two storeys and were built prior to the current restrictions on 
carriage houses. Staff are supportive of the proposed variances due to their minor nature relative 
to other carriage houses on the lane.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

A development permit has been issued for the single family dwelling, however, the carriage 
house portion has been held up due to the variances required. If the variance for the carriage 
house is approved by Council, then another development permit will be issued for the carriage 
house. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the south side of Burne Avenue. The surrounding properties 
are zoned RU6-Two Dwelling Housing. However, the adjacent parcel the west is zoned RU3 – 
Small Lot Housing.  
 
4.3  Subject Property Map: 609 Burne Ave: 

 

 

 

 

105



DVP14-0067 – Page 3 

 
 

5.0 Zoning Analysis Table  

The zoning analysis table is extracted from the Development Variance Permit and shows 
the requirements of RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone compared to the proposal at the 
time: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 551 m2 400 m2 

Lot Width (1) 12.1 m  13 m 

Lot Depth 40.0 m 30 m 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage (buildings)  40.0% 40% 

Site Coverage (buildings/parking)   45.0% 50% 

Single Family Dwelling 

Height    2 ½ storeys / 9.4m 2 ½ storeys / 9.5 m 

Front Yard 4.5 m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (w) 2.33m 2.3m 

Side Yard (e) 2.30m 2.3m 

Rear Yard   16.9m 6.0m   

Carriage House (existing dwelling at the front of the site) 

Height (2) 

  1 ½ storeys / (4.5 m to 

halfway mark in roof) 

1 ½ storeys / (5.5 m to halfway 

mark in the dormer roof) 

1 ½ storeys / 4.5 m 

Front Yard  29.4 m 9.0 m 

Side Yard (w) 2.0 m 2.0 m  

Side Yard (e) 2.1m   2.0 m 

Rear Yard  1.57m  1.5 m   

Lot coverage of accessory 

building (3) 
 15.4% May not exceed 14% 

Other Requirements 

Floor Area 70 m2   90 m2   

Parking Stalls (#) 3 spaces  3 spaces 

Private Open Space 30 m2 per dwelling Meets Requirements 

(1) A Variance is not necessary as the minimum lot width only applies to duplexes, second single family dwellings, and 

subdivisions.  
(2) A Variance is necessary to permit an over height carriage house as the proposed dormers are too wide.   

(3) A Variance is necessary to permit larger site coverage for accessory buildings. 

 

 

 

106



DVP14-0067 – Page 4 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments   

Building & Permitting 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British 
Columbia Building Code (BCBC 12). 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

 The Profile of the main dwelling appears to be three stories and variances may be 
required for this? 

 
Fire 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. If 
a fence is ever constructed between the dwellings a gate with a clear width of 
1100mm is required. Any gate is to open without special knowledge. Additional 
visible address is required from Burne Ave. Emergency access is from the main 
roadway and not the lane to the south. 

 
Development Engineering 

 See attached 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:      April 10, 2014 
Date of Neighbourhood Consultation Received (re: variance):  April 23, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 

Approved for Issuance:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachments:   

Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 

Landscape Plan 

Development Engineering Memo 

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 28, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-43 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning &Real Estate (AR) 

Application: TUP14-0001 Owner: 
P 218 Enterprises Ltd.       
Inc. No. 0852875 

Address: 
459 Groves Avenue                   
437 & 442 Newsom Avenue 

Applicant: Meiklejohn Architects Ltd.  

Subject: Temporary Use Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: MRM - Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize Temporary Use Permit No. TUP14-0001 to allow construction staging and 
preparation on Lots 14 & 19, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3856, except Plan KAP90797, and Lot 11, 
Block 2, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 4743 except Plan KAP90797, located at 459 Groves Avenue, 
442 Newsom Avenue, and 437 Newsom Avenue, Kelowna, BC, for a three (3) year period 
commencing from March 8, 2014, subject to the following conditions: 
 

a) Construction of temporary fencing including a visual/noise barrier to the satisfaction of 
the Director of Community Planning & Real Estate, as shown on “Schedule A”; 

 
b) The entire area to be surfaced with a suitable dust free material; 

 
c) The properties to be remediated with suitable vegetation and street trees upon the 

expiration of the Temporary Use Permit.  

2.0 Purpose 

The applicant is seeking a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) application to extend the use of the 
subject properties as a construction staging and storage location for the adjacent mixed-use 
SOPA Square project under construction at 2986-3030 Pandosy Street for a further and final 
period of three (3) years.  

3.0 Urban Planning Department  

The subject properties are well located to serve the construction staging needs of the adjacent 
SOPA Square development, and critically, there is otherwise no opportunity to accommodate 
construction staging on the actual development site. Originally it had been anticipated that the 

120



TUP14-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

construction of the development would have been completed within the 3-year timeframe of the 
first TUP issued in March 2011. Unfortunately, however, the project has had to contend with 
some financial and other factors that have resulted in construction proceeding at a slower pace 
than originally anticipated. Under current legislation, a second Temporary Use Permit may be 
issued to extend the use of the area for temporary construction staging and storage, but only for 
a maximum of 3 years, and no further extensions beyond the second are permitted. 

The applicant proposes to maintain the existing construction fencing and mesh screening around 
the subject properties, as well as the adjacent portions of the temporarily closed lanes, to 
secure and visually screen the site from the surrounding area. The Kelowna Noise and 
Disturbance Control Bylaw #6647 is in effect and prohibits any construction activity before 
7:00 a.m. or after 10:00 p.m. 

To date, there has been one letter of complaint regarding the subject construction and staging 
site from an adjacent neighbor, expressing concern about the length of time the site has been 
used for construction purposes, and the extent of storage visible above the height of the 
construction fencing. The developer has subsequently made efforts to tidy and re-organize the 
construction staging area, so that it is again largely concealed behind the fencing and visual 
screening. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In November 2008, Council approved the Development and Development Variance Permit 
applications for the SOPA Square development at 2986-3030 Pandosy Street. The proposed 
development is comprised of an 11 storey mixed-use development, with a 2-storey commercial 
podium at grade, and 4-storey townhouse component above the south end of the podium and a 9-
storey apartment building component above the north end. As originally approved, all required 
parking for the residential and commercial components of the development (214 spaces) is to be 
provided underground in a parking facility under the subject development and accessed from the 
rear lane. 

On March 8, 2011, Council authorized Temporary Use Permit TUP10-0003 for the RU1-zoned 
properties at 459 Groves Avenue and 437 & 442 Newsom Avenue to allow construction staging and 
storage for the adjacent SOPA Square project at 2986-3030 Pandosy Street for a period of three 
(3) years, which expired on March 8, 2014. These three residential properties were purchased by 
the developer in 2008, and the existing single family dwellings were subsequently demolished.  

On July 30, 2013, Council gave 2nd and 3rd reading to OCP Amendment application OCP13-0013 to 
change the future land use designation for the three properties at 459 Groves Avenue and 437 & 
442 Newsom Avenue from MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) to MXR – Mixed Use 
(Residential/Commercial) and to Rezoning application Z13-0039 to rezone from RU1 – Large Lot 
Housing to C4 – Urban Centre Commercial, to facilitate the development of a surface parking 
area to serve the adjacent SOPA Square development at 2986-3030 Pandosy Street. 

Adoption of the OCP and zone amending bylaws for use of the properties at 449 Groves Avenue 
and 437 & 442 Newsom Avenue as accessory surface parking for the SOPA Square development is 
pending completion of the approved conditions of adoption by the applicant. To date, the 2-
storey commercial podium of the SOPA Square development at2986-3030 Pandosy Street has been 

121



TUP14-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

largely constructed under the originally issued Development Permit; however, as of the date of 
this report, final occupancy is still pending.  

4.2 Project Description 

On February 27, 2014, the City accepted the subject Temporary Use Permit (TUP) application 
TUP14-0001, which proposes to extend the use of the subject properties at 459 Groves Avenue 
and 437 & 442 Newsome Avenue as a construction staging and storage location for the adjacent 
mixed-use SOPA Square project for a further and final period of three (3) years. The applicant is 
seeking to extend the TUP to continue to use the subject properties as a construction staging and 
storage area during the subsequent phases of the project, which includes construction of the 9-
storey residential tower and 2-storey townhouses above the existing 2-storey commercial 
podium. 

It is proposed that the 1.8 m (6 ft) high construction fence surrounding the existing construction 
staging and storage area on the subject properties will continue to be maintained in order to 
control access and secure the construction site. The existing fencing has mesh fabric attached to 
the inside to visually screen construction activities from the adjacent neighbours and surrounding 
area. (See attached photos). 

4.3 Site Context 

The adjacent zones are as follows: 
 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1  – Large Lot Housing Residential 

East C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Commercial (SOPA Square) 

South RU1  – Large Lot Housing Residential 

West RU1  – Large Lot Housing Residential 

 

In conjunction with the original TUP issued in 2011, the City granted the developer permission to 
temporarily close a portion of the existing lane to the east of the subject properties for 
construction purposes. In addition, the developer has also received permission to temporarily 
close the end of Newsom Avenue, as well as a portion of the lanes located north and south of 
Newsom Avenue that run parallel to Newsom Avenue.  

  

122



TUP14-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 459 Groves Avenue and 437 & 442 Newsom Avenue 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 4 – Future Land Use - Temporary Use Permits (TUP) 

The temporary use designation is intended to apply to operations that are temporary in nature 
and the designation does not in itself permit specific uses on the designated sites. Within these 
areas, Council may, by resolution, issue a Temporary Use Permit and specify the conditions under 
which the temporary use be carried on. Upon the expiration of a Temporary Use Permit, the 
permitted uses revert to those outlined in the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 8000. 
 
Temporary Use Permits may be considered within the Permanent Growth Boundary (PGB) on all 
lands designated in OCP2030 Commercial, Education/Institutional, Industrial, Mixed Use, or 
Public Service/Utility.  All Temporary Use Permits must conform to other policy direction in this 
OCP, including fit within the character of the neighbourhood and surrounding uses. Appropriate 

Subject 
Propertie

s 
 

SOPA Square 
Development Site 

123



TUP14-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

landscaping, screening and buffering will be included as conditions of the permit to protect 
adjacent land uses. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Development Engineering Memorandum, dated March 25, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 Policy & Planning Department 

This application is for a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) to extend the use of the subject properties 
as a construction staging and storage location for the adjacent mixed-use SOAP Square 
development at 2988-3030 Pandosy St. for a 3 year period. 

This application is consistent with the OCP. However, the OCP also states that a TUP must also 
conform to other OCP policies and since the TUP location is adjacent to a single/two unit 
residential neighbourhood, appropriate buffering and landscaping should be included as condition 
of the permit to protect the adjacent land uses. 

6.5 Real Estate Department 

No comments. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: February 27, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Abigail Riley, Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager of Urban Planning 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning and  
Real Estate 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated March 25, 2014 
DRAFT Temporary Use Permit No. TUP14-0001 

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - May 13, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - May 13, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 bl10943.pdf
	4.2 bl10959.pdf
	4.3 bl10960-1.pdf
	4.4 bl10961.pdf
	4.5 Bylaw No. 10956 (OCP14-0001).pdf
	4.6 Bylaw No. 10957 (Z14-0001).pdf
	6.1 2014 05 27 Report LL14-00031978 Kirschner Rd.docx
	6.1 2014 05 27 Attachments LL14-0003 1978 Kirschner Rd.pdf
	7.1 2014 05 27 Report DVP14-0055 423 Christleton Ave.docx
	7.1 2014 05 27 Attachment DVP14-0055 423 Christleton Ave.pdf
	7.1 DVP14-0055_Permit_423 Christleton Ave.pdf
	7.2 2014 05 27 Report DVP14-0051 Richter St.docx
	7.2 2014 05 27 Attachments DVP14-0051 Richter St.pdf
	7.3 2014 05 27 Report DVP14-0057  1829 Chandler Ave.docx
	7.3 2014 05 27 Attachments DVP14-0057 1829 Chandler St.pdf
	7.4 2014 05 27 Report DVP14-0049 935 Academy Way.docx
	7.4 2014 05 27 Attachments DVP14-0049 935 Academy Way.pdf
	7.5 2014 05 27 Report DVP14-0067 609 Burne Ave.docx
	7.5 2014 05 27 Attachments DVP14-0067 609 Burne Ave.pdf
	7.6 2014 05 12 Report TUP14-0001  459 Groves and 437   442 Newsom Ave.docx
	7.6 2014 05 12 Attachment TUP14-0001 459 Groves and 437   442 Newsom Ave.pdf

